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County of Alameda, General Services Agency – Purchasing

RFP No. 900977, Addendum No. 2

COUNTY OF ALAMEDA

QUESTIONS & ANSWERS
to

RFP No. 901868
for

Medical Consulting & Quality Assurance
Summary of Q&A Submitted

Networking/Bidders Conferences held on December 10, 2019
	This County of Alameda, General Services Agency (GSA), RFP Questions & Answers has been electronically issued to potential bidders via e-mail.  E-mail addresses used are those in the County’s Small Local Emerging Business (SLEB) Vendor Database or from other sources.  If you have registered or are certified as a SLEB, please ensure that the complete and accurate e-mail address is noted and kept updated in the SLEB Vendor Database.  This RFP Questions & Answers will also be posted on the GSA Contracting Opportunities website located at https://www.acgov.org/gsa_app/gsa/purchasing/bid_content/contractopportunities.jsp.


Alameda County is committed to reducing environmental impacts across our entire supply chain. 

If printing this document, please print only what you need, print double-sided, and use recycled-content paper

Responses to Questions

Q1) What qualifies a non-profit organization or a government entity to be exempt from the Small Local Emerging Business (SLEB) requirement? 
A1)
Government entities and non-profit community based organizations (CBO) that are providing services on behalf of the County directly to County clients/residents. Non-profit organizations must provide proof of their tax-exempt status. These are defined as organizations that are certified by the U.S. Internal Revenue Service as 501(c) 3. Although exempt from the SLEB requirement, they must go through a competitive procurement process. 
Q2) What are the drivers behind the release of this RFP? 
A2) To ensure the quality of care provided by the California Forensic Medical Group, a for-profit corporation, remains within the standard of community care.
Q3) Is there any special litigation or court order at Alameda County Sherriff’s Office (ACSO)? 
A3) ACSO is involved in several litigation claims, but none that directly govern or dictate medical care within our facility. 
Q4) Is this a new contract or does the County currently have a contract in place? 
A4) The County currently has a contract in place for Medical Consulting & Quality Assurance.
Q5) Who is the incumbent? 
A5) The incumbent for the current contract is Calvin B. Benton, M.D.
Q6) Who is the incumbent for the Comprehensive Medical Care contract? 
A6) The incumbent for the Comprehensive Medical Care contract is California Forensic Medical Group (CFMG).
Q7) Does ACSO currently have an electrical medical record system or is it a paper system? 
A7) CFMG utilizes CorElectronicMedicalRecords (CorEMR) for their electronic medical record needs.  This is not a County Electronic Medical Records (EMR) system. 

Q8) If ACSO does have an electrical medical record system, what product is it? 
A8) The County of Alameda utilizes EPIC EMR for electronic records management. It is not compatible with CorEMR.
Q9) Page 9 of the RFP, Section E (SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS) states:
Medical records are of a secure and confidential nature.  Medical records may not be removed from the premises for any reason.  No copies of medical records are to be made for any reason.  Contractor shall agree to maintain the confidentiality of all health care records as is required by law.  (See Exhibit O, Sample Non-Disclosure Agreement and Conflict of Interest Statement.)  At contract termination, all records shall be returned to County to assure compliance with medical records retention practices.

Can the County clarify this requirement as it states that medical records may not be removed from the premises and then states that all records shall be returned to the County?  Does this imply that remote access to medical records will be available?
A9) Remote access utilizing CFMG’s CorEMR software is available.
Q10) Is there any special Information Technology (IT) functionality requirements that the Contractor will be responsible for in order to access the medical records remotely or will it be cloud based? 
A10) CorEMR is a web-based application. 
Q11) Does every physician involved in all aspects of this project have to have a California license or does the oversight role only need to be licensed in California? 
A11) Page 6 of the RFP, Section D (BIDDER QUALIFICATIONS), Letter b states:

Bidder must be a physician or have physicians on staff that possess a medical license for a minimum of five (5) years from the State of California and the Medical Board, including certification number and area of specialty.  Bidder shall include verification at the time of bid.
Q12) If not, are there other physician roles that can be conducted remotely by a non-California licensed physician? 
A12) The on-sight physician should possess a CA medical license. However, there may be other administrative roles which could be filled by a non-physician. 
Q13) What type of medical record system is used, and if electronic, is it connected to the local hospital(s) system?  Is there remote access capability and if so, is it authorized? 
A13) CFMG utilizes CorEMR for their electronic medical records needs. Remote access is authorized.  However, an on-site presence is also required for meetings and other quality assurance needs per the RFP.
Q14) Does the current program model include nursing staff in addition to physician staff in terms of quality review audits? 
A14) Yes.
Q15) Are all audit reviews/audits done within the correctional facility? If not, are the reviews/records available by other (electronic) methods? 
A15) Yes.
Q16) Can ACSO provide the following annual data for the last 1 to 2 Fiscal Years:
· Number of periodic audits completed;
· Number of inmate medical grievance claims;
· Number of nursing sick calls;
· Number of inmate hospital transfers;
· Number of inmates residing in Outpatient Housing Unit (OPHU);
· Number of beds available in OPHU;
· Number of inmate hospital admissions;
· Number of inmate childbirths; and
· Number of inmate deaths, including number of suicides? 
A16)       Please see the following annual data:

· Number of audits: The incumbent submits monthly reports. 
· Number of inmate medical grievances: 2018 = 471; 2019 = 496
· Number of nursing sick calls: 2018 = 22,159; 2019 = 26,245
· Number of hospital transfers: 2018 = 195; 1019 = 283
· Number of inmates in OPHU: About 15 inmates are housed in the OPHU daily, most of which are transitioning from or to the hospital.  About 5 are housed there full time.
· Number of beds in OPHU: There are a total of 24 patient rooms, most of which are single occupancy. 
· Number of hospital admissions: 2018 = 109; 2019 = 108
· Number of childbirths: 2018 = 1; 2019 = 3.  No childbirths occurred at SRJ. 
· Number of inmate deaths/suicides: 2018 = 4 in custody deaths with 2 of them to suicide; 2019 = 6 in custody deaths with 2 of them to suicide. 

Q17) What is the average length of sentence? 
A17) As a County facility, less than 5% of our population is sentenced. Under CA law, the maximum county sentence is 18 months.  Our average length of stay is 21.5 days. 
Q18) Is mental illness defined under a specific policy or is defined by a community standard? 
A18) Community standard.
Q19)  What are the top diagnosis for medically complex inmates? 
A19) Medically complex inmates are typically transferred and treated at local hospitals.  By far, the most common forms of treatment within SRJ are conditions related to chronic illnesses such as heart disease, obesity, diabetes, and drug addiction. 
Q20) What type of services are provided by ACSO in the medical services facility and OPHU? 
A20) In addition to preventative medicine, CFMG operates an orthopedic clinic, optometry clinic, dialysis clinic, physical therapy, dental clinic, OBGYN clinic, chronic care clinics, vaccination, and on-sight radiology. 
Q21) Does most of the inmate population re-enter in to the local community? 
A21) Yes.
Q22) Are inmates currently re-entering the community with Medically Assisted Treatment (MAT)? 
A22) Yes.  In November 2019, SRJ initiated a one year grant funded MAT program which is continuing to develop.
Q23) Is the oversight physician required to be experienced with MAT? 
A23) No.
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